
1 

 

 

BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 

March 2, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 

Council Chamber 

Town Hall 

85 Union Street 

Roll Call of Members 

 

Acknowledgement of Meeting Notice 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Adjustments to Agenda 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of February 23, 2015 

 

Public Comments 

 

Correspondence 

 

Committee Reports 

 

MANAGER’S REPORT: 

 

a) Report from People Plus 

b) Reminder of the Public Hearing on NNEPRA Storm Water Management Law Permit 

Application 

c) Report on the Riverside Cemetery’s status 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

18. The Town Council will consider supporting a Letter of Intent for a CDBG grant for Gelato 

Fiasco for a business expansion, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

ACTION 

 

19. The Town Council will consider accepting a “PeaceKeeper” armored vehicle donated by the 

Department of Defense’s military surplus, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

ACTION 

 

20. The Town Council will consider authorizing the Town Manager to move forward with 

drafting a TIF program, Development Program, and bond ordinance for the Cooks Corner 

area, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

ACTION 

  



2 

 

 

21. The Town Council will consider the following requests for Sellers of Prepared Food on 

Public Ways on the Brunswick Mall, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager) 

 

Farmer’s Market   Danny’s Dogs 

The Crabby Lobster   Wrappers 

ACTION 

 

22. The Town Council will consider a request for Sellers of Prepared Food on Public Ways for 

outdoor seating, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager)  

 

  Flipside, 111 Maine Street 

  Frosty’s Donuts, 54 Maine Street 

Gelato Fiasco, 74 Maine Street 

  Great Impasta, 42 Maine Street 

  Little Saigon, 44 Maine Street 

Shere Punjab, 46 Maine Street 

ACTION 

 

23. The Town Council will consider amending the charge of the Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Advisory Committee to include a Council representative as one of their members, and to 

have the Committee review their charge, including determining terms for members, and will 

take any appropriate action.  (Chair Brayman) 

ACTION 

 

24. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and Committees, and 

will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee) 

ACTION 

 

 

  



3 

 

 

Brunswick Town Council 

Agenda  

March 2, 2015 

Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of February 23, 2015:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 

packet. 

 

Suggested Motion:  

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Council Committee updates will be done after correspondence.  Councilors with information on the 

Committees they are involved with will share information with the Council and public. 

 

MANAGER’S REPORT: 

 

a) Report from People Plus:  Stacy Frizzle will update the Council and public on the center’s 

activities and upcoming events. 

b) Reminder of the Public Hearing on NNEPRA Storm Water Management Law Permit 

Application:  This item is to remind the Council and public of the upcoming hearing on March 

25
th

.  A copy of the notice is included in your packet. 

c) Report on the Riverside Cemetery’s status:  This item will update the Council on the status of 

this cemetery and the Town’s role with it.  Copies of memos from the Town Manager and the 

Town Attorney are included in your packet. 

 

No motions are required for the Manager’s Report items. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

18. This item is a request from Gelato Fiasco for the Council to submit a letter of intent for a 

CDBG grant in the amount of $350,000 to provide funding to support their production 

expansion in Brunswick. With the growth of this business since 2007, this project would 

develop a 20,000 square foot production space to continue to grow their business.  Copies of 

a memo from Linda Smith and the draft Letter of Intent are included in your packet.  

 

Suggested motion: 

Motion to support a Letter of Intent for a CDBG grant in the amount of $350,000 for Gelato 

Fiasco to support their continued growth and production in Brunswick. 

 

19. This item is for the Council to consider accepting a “PeaceKeeper” armored vehicle donated 

by the Department of Defense’s military surplus.  For several years they have been on the 

Department of Defense’s military surplus list in an effort to obtain an armored vehicle for the 

Special Reaction Team.  On February 5
th

 the Police Department was contacted by a 

representative of the Defense Logistics Agency with regard to the opportunity to receive an 



4 

 

armored “Peacekeeper” vehicle.  This vehicle would be deployed during high-risk situations 

to protect officers.  A similar Cumberland County Sheriff’s vehicle was used for just that 

purpose on Mere Point Road in October 2014.  This vehicle enabled the Police to safely put 

negotiators in the front yard to negotiate a peaceful resolution.  Seven of Maine’s nine police 

departments that have special reaction teams currently have this type of vehicle.  The other 

departments that have armored vehicles are: State Police, Portland, South Portland, 

Cumberland County Sheriff, Sanford, York, and Bangor.  Copies of memos from Chief 

Rizzo and Commander Hagan, along with a photo of the vehicle, are included in your packet. 

 

Suggested motion: 

Motion to accept on behalf of the Police Department a “PeaceKeeper” armored vehicle 

donated by the Department of Defense’s military surplus. 

 

20. This item is for the Council to consider authorizing the Town Manager to move forward with 

drafting a TIF program, Development Program, and bond ordiance.  On November 4, 2013, 

the Town Council authorized the Town to proceed with preliminary engineering for a road 

construction project that would make improvements to Thomas Point Road as well as add 

two new roads; one connecting Gurnet Road to Thomas Point Road and a second connecting 

Thomas Point Road to Tibbetts Drive.  The proposed project had several goals, among them 

to make improvements to Thomas Point Road, to allow a direct connection from Thomas 

Point to Gurnet Road, to make a connection between the Cook’s Corner Mall and Wal‐Mart, 

and to provide access to aid development in the area.  The road improvement project was 

included in the Town’s capital improvement program (CIP) with the expectation that, if the 

Town were to construct the project, a majority of the cost associated with it would be funded 

through tax increment financing.  A small portion of the project would be funded with Big 

Box fees that were collected and dedicated to improvements in the Cook’s Corner area.  The 

engineering report was delayed by the need to secure commitments from abutting 

landowners.  Those commitments included contribution of right‐of‐way and the 

extinguishment of certain shared easements.  Copies of a memo from the Town Manager, 

along with supporting documents, are included in your packet. 

 

Suggested motion: 

Option 1 

Motion to authorize the Town Manager to move forward with drafting a TIF program, 

Development Program, and bond ordinance for the Cooks Corner area. 

OR 

Option 2 

Motion to have a Council workshop on the Cooks Corner TIF and road project. 

 

21. This is the annual approval of the Sellers of Prepared Food on Public Ways on the Brunswick 

Mall.  The fee for the Farmer’s Market is $3,000 and the other vendors pay $1,500 each.  

There are three vendors plus the Farmer’s Market seeking Council approval to do business on 

the Mall.  All three are renewals: Danny’s Dogs, Wrappers, and The Crabby Lobster.  There 

is still one vacant spot for a food vendor on the mall.  The Town Clerk will be available to 

answer any questions.  Copies of the applications are included in your packet. 

 

Suggested Motion: 



5 

 

Motion to approve licenses for Sellers of Prepared Food on Public Ways for the Brunswick 

Mall for the Farmer’s Market, Danny’s Dogs, The Crabby Lobster, and Wrappers. 

 

22. This item is the annual approval of Sellers of Prepared Food on Public Ways on Sidewalks.  

These are all renewal applications.  There is no license fee except for a $25 application fee, 

but it does require Council approval.  The Clerk will be available to answer any questions.  

Copies of the applications are included in your packet. 

 

Suggested Motion: 

Motion to approve licenses for Sellers of Prepared Food on Public Ways on a Sidewalk for 

Flipside, 111 Maine Street; Frosty’s Donuts, 54 Maine Street ;Gelato Fiasco, 74 Maine 

Street; Great Impasta, 42 Maine Street; Little Saigon, 44 Maine Street, and Shere Punjab, 46 

Maine Street. 

 

23. This item, sponsored by Chair Brayman, asks for the Council to consider adding a Council 

representative to the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC).  The proposed 

change would bring this Board in line with other advisory committees, such as Recycling & 

Sustainability, Cable TV, and MPIC, which have Council representation and participation.  

In addition, since the Committee’s charge has not been changed since the original in 1999 

(except for reducing the number of members to 7 from 9 in 2009), it might be time for the 

BPAC to review and update their charge, if necessary.  In order to have a similar structure to 

other Town boards that have terms of office for their members, BPAC needs to make 

recommendations for terms of office for members and provide a list of the current members 

and length of term each will have in order to achieve staggering terms.  A copy of BPAC’s 

charge, along with the recommended amendment, is included in your packet. 

 

Suggested motion: 

Motion to amend the charge of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee to include a 

Council representative as one of their members. 

 

Suggested motion: 

Motion to have BPAC review their charge to make recommendations for any necessary 

updates, including making recommendations on creating staggering terms of office for their 

members, and to report back to the Council by June 1, 2015. 

 

24. At this time the Appointments Committee will make nominations to fill vacancies on Town 

Boards and Committees.  Copies of the Appointment Committee’s report and the 

applications are included in your packet. 

 

Suggested Motion: 

Nominations will be made, with no seconds required, and the Council will then vote on the 

nominations. 

 

Suggested Motion:  

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
February 23, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Town Hall 
85 Union Street 

 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, John M. Perreault, 

Daniel E. Harris, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, Katherine E. Wilson, 
and John Richardson, Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant 

to the Town Manager; Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney; Anna Breinich, 
Director of Planning and Development; Richard Rizzo, Police Chief; Marc 
Hagan, Police Commander; Jonathan O’Connor, Police Sergeant; Dan 
Devereaux, Marine Warden; Terry Goan, Patrol Officer; and TV video 
crew 

 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked the Clerk for roll call, acknowledged that the 
meeting was properly noticed, and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Adjustments to Agenda - None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA (This item was discussed at 7:02 p.m.) 

a) Approval of the Minutes of February 9, 2015 
b) Approval of games of chance for the St. John the Baptist Parish Bazaar on June 19, 

2015, June 20, 2015, and June 21, 2015 
 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to approve the Consent Agenda.  
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of CA-B material will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Public Comments  (This item was discussed at 7:30 p.m.) 
 
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street, spoke about the parking on Page Street becoming an issue 
because of snow and because the College prohibited students from parking behind their houses in 
that area.  The Town needs a better town-wide parking plan. 
  
  



Town Council Minutes 
February 23, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Correspondence  (This item was discussed at 7:10 p.m.) 
 
Councilor Millett spoke of how she and Councilor Harris went to the Legislative hearings on the 
Governor’s proposed budget, and she spoke about upcoming meetings.   
 
Councilor Richardson said Kinder Morgan, a gas pipeline company, will be holding a meeting to 
discuss the extension of the gas pipeline from New York to Massachusetts.  It will be held on 
February 25th at 8:00 a.m. the Captain Daniel Stone Inn.  The meeting will be to discuss the pros 
and cons of such an extension. 
 
Councilor Watson spoke about our high school teams’ success, with the girls winning the state 
swim championship, and sportsmanship awards being received by the boys track, the girls’ 
cheerleaders, and the girls’ hockey team. 
 
Committee Reports (This item was discussed at 7:15 p.m.) 
 
Councilor Richardson spoke on the potential municipal solar panels on the Recreation Building, 
with a joint meeting of the Recycling and Sustainability Committee and the Recreation 
Commission scheduled for March 5, 2015, to discuss the benefits of this project.  
 
A report was also given from the Finance Committee. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
(a) Financial Update (This item was discussed at 7:17 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
(b) Recognition of Sergeant Jonathan O’Connor for receiving the Act of Bravery Award  

(This item was discussed at 7:20 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Watson read the proclamation and presented it to Sergeant O’Connor. 

 
(A copy of the Proclamation will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
(c) Update on Frank Wood Bridge Project  (This item was discussed at 7:25 p.m.)   
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
(d) Update on the NNEPRA Stormwater Management Permit process (This item was 

discussed at 7:26 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
February 23, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
15. The Town Council will hear public comments on amendments to Chapter 11 

“Marine Activities, Structures and Ways” relative to a Harbor Ordinance and 
mooring requirements, and will take any appropriate action. (Councilor S. Wilson 
and Councilor Walker)  (This item was discussed at 7:27 p.m.) 

 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson spoke and then Mark Worthing, Chair of the Rivers and Coastal Waters 
Commission, introduced this item. 
 
Officer Dan Devereaux spoke and responded to questions from Councilor Millett and Councilor 
Harris.  
 
The following people spoke regarding this item: 
Joe Caruso, 94 Collinsbrook Road 
Elizabeth Butler, 18 Phippany Way 
Jim Trusiani, 6 Pleasant Street 
 
Councilor Walker spoke and responded to questions from Councilor K. Wilson, who also spoke 
on the item. 
 
Councilor Richardson spoke and asked questions, to which Dr. Worthing responded. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson spoke again on this item. 
 
Councilor Walker responded to questions from Councilor Millett. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
Chair Brayman spoke regarding this item and the Council decided to vote on it tonight. 
 
MOTION: 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor S. Wilson seconded, to adopt amendments to Chapter 
11 “Marine Activities, Structures and Ways” relative to a Harbor Ordinance and mooring 
requirements.   
 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor Richardson, Councilor S. Wilson, and Councilor Millett spoke 
regarding this item. 
 
VOTE ON MOTION: 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor S. Wilson seconded, to adopt amendments to Chapter 
11 “Marine Activities, Structures and Ways” relative to a Harbor Ordinance and mooring 
requirements.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 



Town Council Minutes 
February 23, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 
 

 
SECOND MOTION: 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to have this Council direct 
the Commission, consistent with the Harbor Management Plan, to review the various 
options for non-shore owning Brunswick residents and to bring those recommendations for 
a mooring assignment policy to this Council no later than June 15, 2016. 
 
Councilor Richardson, Councilor Walker, Councilor Millett, and Manager Eldridge spoke 
regarding this second motion. 
 
Councilor Harris asked questions, to which Manager Eldridge, Officer Devereaux, and Dr. 
Worthing responded. 
 
VOTE ON SECOND MOTION: 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor K. Wilson seconded, to have this Council direct 
the Commission, consistent with the Harbor Management Plan, to review the various 
options for non-shore owning Brunswick residents and to bring those recommendations for 
a mooring assignment policy to this Council no later than June 15, 2016.  The motion 
carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Millett was opposed. 
 
(A copy of the adopted ordinance amendments will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
16. The Town Council will hear public comments on amendments to Chapter 12, 

“Personnel Ordinance” to clarify language regarding vacation time accumulation 
and use, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager)  (This item was discussed at 
8:20 p.m.) 

 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Manager Eldridge introduced this item and responded to questions from Chair Brayman 
Councilor Harris, and Councilor Millett.  
 
Councilor S. Wilson and Councilor Millett spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing. 
 
MOTION: 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to adopt amendments to Chapter 12, 
“Personnel Ordinance” to clarify language regarding vacation time accumulation and use.   
 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor Richardson, Councilor Millett, Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor 
Harris, and Councilor Watson spoke regarding this item.  
 
  



Town Council Minutes 
February 23, 2015 
Page 5 
 

 
 

VOTE ON MOTION: 
Chair Brayman moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to adopt amendments to Chapter 12, 
“Personnel Ordinance” to clarify language regarding vacation time accumulation and use.  
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the adopted ordinance amendments will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Councilor Richardson left the meeting prior to new business. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
17. The Town Council will consider submitting a letter to the Maine Department of 

Environmental Protection expressing the Town of Brunswick’s interest in 
identifying funding for a watershed plan for Mare Brook, and will take any 
appropriate action. (Councilor Walker) (This item was discussed at 8:41 p.m.) 

 
Councilor Walker introduced this item. 
 
Councilor Millett spoke and asked questions, to which Councilor Walker responded. 
 
Joe Ciarrocca, 532 Harpswell Road, spoke and asked questions, to which Councilor Walker 
responded. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson and Councilor Perreault asked questions, to which Councilor Walker 
responded. 
 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to submit a letter to Maine 
Department of Environmental Protection expressing the Town of Brunswick’s interest in 
identifying funding for a watershed plan for Mare Brook.  The motion carried with eight 
(8) yeas. 
 
(A copy of a memo from Councilor Walker will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to adjourn the meeting. The 
motion carried with eight (8) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:58 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
Frances M. Smith 
Town Clerk 
February 25, 2015 



Town Council Minutes 
February 23, 2015 
Page 6 
 

 
 

 
March 2, 2015 

Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



S T A T E  O F  M A I N E  

DEP A R T MEN T  OF  EN VIR ON MEN T A L PR OT ECT ION  
 
 
 
 
 

 PAUL R. LEPAGE PATRICIA W. AHO 

 GOVERNOR COMMISSIONER 

AUGUSTA BANGOR PORTLAND PRESQUE ISLE 
17 STATE HOUSE STATION 106 HOGAN ROAD, SUITE 6 312 CANCO ROAD 1235 CENTRAL DRIVE, SKYWAY PARK 
AUGUSTA, MAINE 04333-0017 BANGOR, MAINE 04401 PORTLAND, MAINE 04103 PRESQUE ISLE, MAINE 04769 
(207) 287-7688 FAX: (207) 287-7826 (207) 941-4570 FAX: (207) 941-4584 (207) 822-6300 FAX: (207) 822-6303 (207) 764-0477 FAX: (207) 760-3143 

 

web site: www.maine.gov/dep  

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  

 

Northern New England Passenger Rail Authority 

Storm Water Management Law Permit Application 

Brunswick, Cumberland County, Maine 

 

The Maine Department of Environmental Protection (Department) hereby gives notice that it will 

hold a public hearing on the application submitted by the Northern New England Passenger Rail 

Authority for a Storm Water Management law permit.  The permit application—Department 

Project #L-26119-NJ-C-N—is for the construction of a passenger train equipment layover 

facility located in Brunswick, Maine.   

 

The Department will conduct the public hearing in accordance with the provisions of the Maine 

Administrative Procedure Act (5 M.R.S.A. §§ 9051-9064) and the Department’s rules governing 

licensing and hearings (Chapters 2 and 3). 

 

The purpose of the hearing is to receive testimony from the parties and the general public on 

whether the proposed project meets the relevant statutory and regulatory licensing requirements.  

The statutory and regulatory criteria associated with the Department’s review of this license 

application are:  Storm Water Management law (38 M.R.S.A. § 420-D) and the Department’s 

rules concerning Stormwater Management (Chapter 500).  Testimony at the hearing is limited 

specifically to the criteria described in this notice (stormwater standards, including, but not 

limited to, basic, general, and flooding standards).  An outline describing the relevant regulatory 

review criteria associated with the proposed project is available on the Department’s website at 

www.maine.gov/dep/permits/blf in the document, “Second Procedural Order and attachments.”   

 

The hearing will be held on Wednesday, March 25, 2015 at 9:00 A.M. at the Brunswick Golf 

Club, 165 River Road, Brunswick, Maine.  The hearing is open to the public.  The daytime 

portion of the hearing will be devoted to receiving testimony from the parties (applicant and 

intervenors) in accordance with procedural orders issued by the Department.   

 

The evening portion of the hearing, beginning at 6:00 P.M., will be devoted to receiving 

testimony from members of the general public.  As with all testimony, public testimony is given 

under oath and is subject to cross-examination by the parties, and questions from the presiding 

officer, Department staff, and counsel for the Department.  Individuals who are affiliated with, 

but not an officer of, a party in this matter may testify at the evening session of the hearing in 

their personal capacity but not as part of the presentation of a party.     

 

Members of the public may submit written comments to the Department by mail to Bill Bullard, 

Project Manager, Maine Department of Environmental Protection, 312 Canco Road, Portland, 

Maine 04103; by email to Bill.Bullard@maine.gov; and by hand delivery to 312 Canco Road, 

mailto:Bill.Bullard@maine.gov


Notice of Public Hearing 

NNEPRA Storm Water Management Law Permit Application  

February 20, 2015 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Portland, Maine.  The Department will accept written comments from the public during the 

application review period from now through the date of the public hearing (March 25, 2015).    

 

The licensing file associated with the proposed project is available for public review by   

arrangement during normal business hours at the Department’s Southern Maine Regional Office 

located at 312 Canco Road in Portland, Maine.  Questions regarding the hearing or requests to 

examine the licensing file may be directed to Bill Bullard at the address described above or by 

telephone at (207) 615-3149. 

 

 

 

  

 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 February	26,		2015	
	
RE:	 Riverside	Cemetery	
	
	
Last	November	I	advised	the	Town	Council	that,	on	October	31st,	I	received	multiple	e‐mails,	and	
then	a	visit,	from	Scott	Walker.		Mr.	Walker	has	been	the	president	of	the	Riverside	Cemetery	
Association.		I	am	told	that	association	owns	and	maintains	Riverside	Cemetery.		In	his	visit,	Mr.	
Walker	delivered	"all"	of	the	records	and	maps	he	had	relating	to	Riverside	Cemetery.		He	indicated	
that	he	no	longer	wants	to	oversee	the	cemetery.		He	also	said	that	he	could	not	find	anyone	
interested	in	taking	over	this	responsibility.		He	claims	to	have	offered	the	cemetery	to	area	
churches.	
	
The	Town	Attorney	has	reviewed	the	relevant	statutes	and	does	not	believe	the	Riverside	Cemetery	
Association	cannot	simply	transfer	its	responsibilities	to	the	Town.		While	there	is	a	law	governing	
abandoned	cemeteries,	this	law	does	not	appear	to	apply	to	this	situation.		We	believe	the	
Association	continues	to	be	responsible	for	the	operation	and	maintenance	of	Riverside	Cemetery.	
	
Having	said	this,	there	no	appears	no	one	willing	to	operate	the	cemetery.		There	are	vacant	plots	in	
the	cemetery	and	we	expect	people	will	be	calling	the	Town	in	the	spring.		While	it	is	true	that	many	
towns	and	cities	operate	and	maintain	cemeteries,	the	Town	of	Brunswick	is	not	currently	
equipped	to	take	on	this	function.		We	would	like	to	have	a	discussion	with	the	Town	Council	about	
its	expectations.			



PretiFlaherty
Stephen E.F. Langsdorf

slangsdort@pretl,corn

February 25, 2015

Portland, ME

Augusta, ME

Concord, NH

Boston, MA

Washington, DC

Bedminster, NJ

Salem, MA

Mr. Scott Walker
38 Range Road
Brunswick, ME 04011

RE: Riverside Cemetery

Dear Mr. Walker:

I am writing to you as Town Attorney for the Town of Brunswick. On October 31, 2014
you went to the Town Office and provided to the Town all of the records, maps and other
documentation that you had in your possession relating to the Riverside Cemetery. You
communicated to the Town Manager that you did not want to continue your obligation to oversee
the cemetery and have not found anyone else who is interested in taking over the responsibility
for the cemetery. Apparently you believe that the Town will take responsibility for the cemetery.

This letter is to specifically advise you that the Town does not have the legal
responsibility to take over the cemetery. As I understand it, you are a Trustee and you are
obligated by law to continue your duties unless you are able to obtain a suitable replacement. I
have spoken with the Attorney General's office regarding this matter and have advised them that
we are aware of a situation where the Trustee of a Charitable corporation involving cemeteries
has attempted to transfer that responsibility to the Town. The Attorney General's office is
familiar with the issue and would be prepared to discuss this with you.

Please make arrangements with the Town Manager to pick up the materials that you
dropped off. If the Town can be of any assistance in working with you to attempt to find
someone suitable to take over for you, please let me know.

Sincerely,

SEFL:ryp

Stephen E.F.Langsdorf

Preti Flaherty

Betiveau & Pachios LLP

Attorneys at Law 45 Memorial Circle, Augusta, ME 04330
)

PO Box 1058, Augusta, ME 04332-1058
(

Tel 207.623.5300
( Bgyyvy~eti.corn



 
 

 
ITEM 18 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
INCORPORATED 1739 

ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT 

28 FEDERAL STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011-1583 

 
 

 

TELEPHONE      207-721-0292 

FAX                      207-725-6663 

 

 
 

TO:  Brunswick Town Council Members 

 

FROM:  Linda Smith, Business Development Manager 

 

SUBJECT: The Gelato Fiasco Request to submit a Letter of Intent (LOI) for a Community 

Development Block Grant application 

 

DATE:  February 25, 2015 

 

The Gelato Fiasco is requesting a Letter of Intent (LOI) from the Town of Brunswick to submit to the 

Department of Economic and Community Development’s Office of Community Development for $350,000 

from the Community Development Block Grant Economic Development program to provide funding to 

support their production expansion in Brunswick 

As the Letter of Intent indicates, Joshua Davis and Bruno Tropeano opened Gelato Fiasco in Brunswick, 

Maine on August 7, 2007. Their commitment to quality, fun and community created a successful business 

model. Starting with six employees and one retail store with production “in back”, today the business 

maintains its Flagship store in Brunswick, its Portland store, a production facility, and distribution to 47 

states in the U.S. They employ 36 FTE employees in the retail and production lines. Recently, Gelato 

Fiasco signed a contract with the Kroger Company to distribute their gelato through its 1,700 stores 

nation-wide. 

This moves the company to a new phase of production. Currently operating out of a 6,000 square foot 

facility on Industry Road, they are negotiating for 20,000 square feet of production space with new kitchen 

facilities at another location in Brunswick. They also expect in increase their workforce by another 15 

employees.  

Josh and Bruno are exemplary entrepreneurs, as witnessed by the numerous awards they’ve garnered, 

including the Small Business Administration’s Young Entrepreneur of 2014. The company has grown 

exponentially since its founding in 2007, with last quarter’s revenues equaling all of last year’s revenues. 

That growth literally comes at a great cost as they face this major expansion. They are contract rich and 

cash flow poor, facing a potentially disproportionately large debt service to grow the business. Therefore, 

they are seeking a $350,000 CDBG as a part of a $1,410,000 expansion effort. The expansion will 

support leasehold improvements and equipment purchases. The 15 new employee positions will range 

from sales and marketing to production.      

The draft Letter of Intent is in your packet for your reference. Josh Davis will be available at the March 2, 

2015 Town Council meeting to answer any questions. 

 

Cc: John Eldridge, Town Manager, Town of Brunswick 

       Josh Davis & Bruno Tropeano, The Gelato Fiasco        



 

2015 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 
 

1 

State of Maine 
Community Development Block Grant Program 

2015 Economic Development Program 
Letter of Intent to Apply 

Due the first Friday of each month by 4:00 p.m.* 

Letters of Intent may be submitted via email to: ocd.loi@maine.gov 
Please enter “EDP LOI” in the subject line. 

 
2015 CDBG Program Funds are not expected to be available before July 1, 2015. 

 
All communities wishing to apply for assistance under the 2015 Economic Development Program must use this Letter of 
Intent to document compliance with requirements established by Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act 
of 1974, as amended and the State of Maine CDBG program. Applicants who submit a completed Letter of Intent deemed 
to be fully compliant will be notified by OCD that they are eligible to submit a final application.  Eligibility to submit a final 
application does not imply final project approval or funding. 

 
EDP PROJECT PARTICIPANTS 
 
Legal Applicant (Community): 
 

Applicant: Town of Brunswick Phone: 207-725-6659 

Address: 85 Union Street,  Fax: 207-725-6663 

City, ZIP+4: Brunswick, ME 04011 E-Mail: lsmith@brunswickme.org 

Contact: Linda E. Smith / 207-721-0292 / lsmith@brunswickme.org 

DUNS #: Applicant DUNS (Dunn & Bradstreet) #: 077466274 

(visit http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform if applicant needs to obtain a number) 

OCD Development Program Manager (Name and Date of Consultation Required): Andrea Smith / 
phone call / Thursday February 19, 2015 

 
Business to be assisted:  
 

Business  The Gelato Fiasco Phone: 207-607-4002 or 
207-649-1594 

Address: 2 Industry Road Fax: 866-811-9512 

City, ZIP: Brunswick, ME 04011 E-Mail: josh@gelatofiasco.com 

Contact: Joshua Davis Title Treasurer 

DUNS #: Applicant Business DUNS (Dunn & Bradstreet) #: 806346149 
(visit http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform if business needs to obtain a number) 

 
If applicable, is business to be assisted      Retail                              Start-up    

 
 

*If the first Friday of the month falls on a holiday the EDP Letter of Intent will be due by 4:00pm on the next 
business day. 

mailto:ocd.loi@maine.gov
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform


 

2015 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 
 

2 

 
EDP ELIGIBLE ACTIVITY CATEGORIES  
 

 
 
 
 

Grants to Municipalities:  
for acquisition, relocation,  demolition, clearance, construction,  
reconstruction, installation and rehabilitation associated with  public  
infrastructure projects such as water and sewer improvements,  
flood and drainage improvements, publicly-owned commercial                             $1,000,000 
and industrial buildings, parking, streets, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, etc.    
All public infrastructure must be owned by the municipality or public  
or private utility and be in support of an identified business.   

 Grants to Municipalities for Direct Business Support:   
for capital and non-capital equipment, land and site improvements,  
rehabilitation or construction of commercial or industrial buildings,                      $1,000,000   
job training, working capital and capital equipment and be in  
support of an identified business.  Acquisition is not an allowable  
activity under this group. 

 

Applicants may apply in only one specific grant activity group. 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM FUNDS CANNOT BE USED TO REFINANCE EXISTING DEBT 

PROJECT INFORMATION 
 
Using the space provided please provide a clear, concise description of the proposed development 
project.  Be sure to clearly explain how EDP funds will be utilized, the financing gap that exists in 
order to do the project and the timeline in which the CDBG-EDP funds will be expended and 
information relative to jobs being created and/or retained.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Joshua Davis and Bruno Tropeano opened Gelato Fiasco in Brunswick, Maine on August 7, 2007. Their 
commitment to quality, fun and community created a successful business model; starting with six 
employees and one retail store with production “in back”, today the business maintains its Flagship store in 
Brunswick, its Portland store, a production facility, and distribution to 47 states in the U.S. They employ 36 
FTE employees in the retail and production lines. Recently, Gelato Fiasco signed a contract with the Kroger 
Company to distribute their gelato through its 1,700 stores nation-wide.  
 
This moves the company to a new phase of production. Currently, they operate out of a 6,000 square foot 
facility on Industry Road in Brunswick. They anticipate needing 20,000 square feet of production space with 
new kitchen facilities by late summer 2015 in order to meet demand. They also expect in increase their 
workforce by another 15 employees. Their current location does not lend itself to this size expansion. They 
are currently working with a prospective landlord in Brunswick to expand in to new space by August 2015. 
Josh and Bruno are exemplary entrepreneurs, as witnessed by the numerous awards they’ve garnered, 
including the Small Business Administration’s Young Entrepreneur of 2014. The company has grown 
exponentially since its founding in 2007, with last quarter’s revenues equaling all of last year’s revenues. 
That growth literally comes at a great cost as they face this major expansion. They are contract rich and 
cash flow poor, facing a potentially disproportionately large debt service to grow the business. Therefore, 
they are seeking a $350,000 CDBG as a part of a $1,410,000 expansion effort. The expansion will support 
leasehold improvements and equipment purchases. The 15 new employee positions will range from sales 
and marketing to production (see job creation section below for details).      

 



 

2015 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 
 

3 

EDP DOLLARS PER JOB CREATED 
 

The maximum CDBG participation per job created with EDP funds is $30,000. 
 
JOB RETENTION INFORMATION (Fill in job information below) 

 

 
The applicant must also attach documentation to this Letter of Intent such as public announcement of 
lay-offs, public announcement of imminent closure, financial records) of impending job loss without 
CDBG Program assistance.  Completion of Job Retention Assurances and Job Retention 
Summary Documentation must be completed and submitted to the Office of Community 
Development before applicant will be invited to submit an EDP application.  Forms require 
completion and must be signed by both the municipal and business CEO.  Please pay close attention 
to the definition of permanent, full time and full time equivalent jobs.   
 
JOB CREATION INFORMATION (Fill in job information below) 

 
 

Occupation/Job Title # of 
Jobs 

Work 
 Location 

Hire  
Date 

Hourly  
Salary 

Hourly Salary 
with fringe 
benefits 

Officials & managers - 
Buyer 

1 Brunswick / new 
facility 

June 2015 $12.50 $15.00 

Technicians – Quality 
Control Lab Manager 

1 Brunswick / new 
facility 

June 2015 $13.00 $15.50 

Office & Clerical – 
Accounts Payable Clerk 

1 Brunswick / new 
facility 

June 2015 $13.00 $15.50 

Crafts Worker – Master 
Gelato Maker 

1 Brunswick / new 
facility 

May 2015 $15.00 $17.50 

Operatives – Gelato 
Maker 

8 Brunswick / new 
facility 

May 2015 $12.75 $14.75 

Laborer: Dish Washer 1 Brunswick / new 
facility 

May  2015 $10.00 $12.00 

Service Worker: Janitor 1 Brunswick / new 
facility 

May 2015 $11.00 $13.00 

Sales: Inside Sales Rep 1 Brunswick / new 
facility 

July 2015 $12.00 $14.00 

 
In determining CDBG National Objective compliance with job retention only Permanent jobs may be 
counted; temporary jobs may not.  Full time jobs require a worker to work at least 1750 hours per 
year.  Part time jobs require a worker to work at least 875 hours but less than 1750 hours per year.  
Part-time jobs must be converted to Full Time Equivalents (FTE).  An FTE is defined as two part time 
jobs.  Seasonal jobs may count only if the seasonal job lasts long enough and provides sufficient 
income to be considered the employee's principal occupation.  (Contact OCD prior to counting 
seasonal jobs towards LMI benefit.)  All permanent jobs created by the project must be counted, 
regardless of funding source(s).  Jobs indirectly created by the project (i.e., remote location, “trickle 
down” jobs) do not count. 

Number of Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Jobs to be Retained: N/A 

Number of Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Jobs to be Created: 15 



 

2015 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 
 

4 

 
G. COST ESTIMATES & PROJECT FUNDING 

 

Provide the estimated project cost, amount of CDBG funds to be requested and sources, amounts 
and dates secured for all anticipated cash matching funds.  
 

Applicants for Economic Development Program funds must certify and provide documentation, at 
time of application, that there is a 100% cash match of the total EDP award.  Matching funds must be 
directly related to the activities undertaken with EDP funding and must be firm commitments from 
non-CDBG funds and documented by binding commitment letters submitted with the final application.  
Prior commitments and in-kind contributions are not considered as match.  Project must demonstrate 
that there is a gap between sources and uses and that CDBG funds are needed to fill that gap. 
Communities receiving an EDP award may not receive any other EDP award for the same project or 
business during the same program year or for the same or project or business from a prior program 
year that has not met final closeout status.   
 

All construction estimates should be prepared by the Engineer/Architect.  Take into account the 
inflation rate in relation to the anticipated starting date of the project and applicable DAVIS/BACON 
wage rates as they apply to construction costs.  Please note projects with a total cost exceeding 
$3,000,000 are not eligible for EDP assistance. The minimum request for EDP assistance is 
$100,000*. 
 

Total Estimated Project Cost:   $1,410,000 CDBG Request:   $350,000 

 

Funding Source Amount Date Secured 

Traditional financing institution / 
Landlord (leasehold Improvements & 
equipment) 

$770,000 In process 

Owner Equity (equipment) $290,000 February 2015 

CDBG (equipment) $350,000 TBD 

   

   

   

   

   

TOTAL:   $ 1,410,000  

 
EDP PROJECTS IN SUPPORT OF RETAIL BUSINESSES  

 

EDP applications in support of a retail business must attach written documentation to 
this  Letter of Intent for each of the  following limited conditions: 
 
1. The retail business represents the provisions of new products and services previously 
unavailable in the community or is a tourism-related business; and 
 
2. The development or expansion of the retail business represents a net economic gain for the 
community and the region.  Applications supporting a retail business or businesses are required 
to certify that the development represents a new overall gain for the region economy and not a 
shift from existing established businesses to a new or expanded one; and 



 

2015 Economic Development Grant Program 
Letter of Intent 
 

5 

 
3. The retail business is located in either a downtown district meeting the definition of PL 776 
enacted by the 119th legislature; or a designated local growth area contained in an adopted and 
consistent comprehensive plan; and 
 
4. At least 50% of the jobs created by the retail business must be full time jobs. 

 
*Projects seeking less than $100,000 in CDBG EDP funds must request a waiver from the 
Office of Community Development (OCD) and have received approval of that wavier from OCD 
prior to the submission of the EDP Letter of Intent.  
 

Applicant & Business Certifications 
 
 

As an authorized official of the applicant community and/or business, I certify under the 
penalties of perjury that: 
 

1.  To the best of my knowledge and belief, all information contained in this Letter of Intent 
and all attached documentation is true and correct and current as of the date signed below; 
 

2.  This Letter of Intent complies with all applicable State and federal laws and regulations; 
 

3.   Both parties signing this Letter of Intent are cognizant of the requirement that 
should the intended Job Creation/Retention National Objective of the CDBG program 
not be met all CDBG funds must be repaid to the State of Maine CDBG program;  
DECD may elect to secure such requirement/repayment with assets of the Applicant 
Business for a term of up to five years should this project be approved for funding; 
 
4.  Approval of this Letter of Intent by OCD to submit a final application does not imply final 
project approval or funding. 
 

Signature of Chief Executive Officer: 
 
 

Printed or Typed Name: 
John S. Eldridge, III 

Name of Applicant Community: 
Town of Brunswick 
 

Date:  
March 6, 2015 

 

Signature of Chief Executive Officer: 
 
 

Printed or Typed Name: 
Joshua Davis 
 

Name of Applicant Business: 
The Gelato Fiasco 
 

Date:  
March 6, 2015 

 

  



 
 

 
ITEM 19 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

TO:  John Eldridge, Town Manager 
FROM: Chief Richard J. Rizzo 
DATE:  February 13, 2015 
SUBJECT: Opportunity to Acquire an Armored Vehicle for SRT  

 

For several years the police department has been on the Department of Defense’s military surplus 
list in an effort to obtain an armored vehicle for our Special Reaction Team.  As you may recall, last 
year we were offered, and I declined, an MRAP (mine-resistant ambush protected vehicle).   

On February 4th, the Department of Defense offered us a “PeaceKeeper” armored vehicle.  Unlike 
the MRAP, which is a huge 18 ton truck, the PeaceKeeper is just a 1 ton pick-up truck frame with 
protective armor.  This vehicle would be deployed during high-risk situations to protect our officers.  
As you may recall, a similar Cumberland County Sheriff’s vehicle was used for just that purpose on 
Mere Point Road in October.  This vehicle enabled us to safely put negotiators in her front yard to 
negotiate a peaceful resolution. 

This is a much needed tool for the safety of our officers and Brunswick’s residents.  Seven of 
Maine’s nine police department’s that have special reaction teams currently have “PeaceKeeper” 
type vehicles.  The police departments that have armored vehicles are: State Police, Portland, South 
Portland, Cumberland County Sheriff, Sanford, York, and Bangor.  Augusta and Brunswick do not 
have an armored vehicle.  The majority of this nation’s police departments also have an armored 
vehicle to protect their officers and citizens during high-risk situations.  

Included with this memo is a request from Commander Marc Hagan, (our SRT Commander) to 
acquire this vehicle.    



 Brunswick Police 
Department  

Memo 
To:    Chief Richard J. Rizzo 

From:    Commander Marc R. Hagan 

Subject:  Armored Vehicle Opportunity 

Date:    February 13, 2015 

 

On February 5th we were contacted by a representative from the Defense Logistics Agency with 
regard to the opportunity to receive an armored “Peacekeeper” vehicle.  I believe that you are 
already aware but the Defense Logistics Agency is part of the Department of Defense, and is 
responsible for the distribution of excess property received from the military services. The 
representative stated that we have the opportunity to receive a “Peacekeeper” armored vehicle that 
was returned to the DLA by the Bloomington Minnesota Police Department.  It should be noted 
that we were advised this particular vehicle is in the best shape of any that have been returned.   

I contacted the Bloomington Minnesota Police Department, and found that the vehicle had been 
used primarily by the department’s SWAT Team.  I then spoke with Sergeant Damon Bitney, 
SWAT Team Leader, about the vehicle.  I learned the following during our conversation: 

• The vehicle is a 1989 Peacekeeper armored truck.  Peacekeepers were produced 
primarily in the 1980’s on a shortened Dodge pickup chassis.  The vehicle is powered by 
a V-8 gasoline engine, and has been fitted with light armor capable of protecting its’ 
occupants from small arms and rifle fire.  The vehicle was designed to hold 6-8 persons.       

• The vehicle has been run on a weekly basis, with recent engine work to “overhaul the 
carburetor”.  Sergeant Bitney stated that he is “not a mechanic by any means”, but 
believes the engine to be in generally good condition.    

• The exterior of the vehicle is reportedly in good shape, other than a small dent on the 
front, and no rust.  The vehicle was reportedly kept indoors, out of the elements. 

• Sergeant Bitney stated that the only reason Bloomington PD returned the vehicle to the 
DLA was because they were purchasing a new, modern, armored vehicle ($142,000).   

I believe that the opportunity to add a lightly armored vehicle to the Brunswick Police 
Department’s inventory should not be missed.  Below are several reasons that highlight the 
importance of this opportunity:   

  Our Special Response Team has responded to eleven (11) high risk incidences in the past 5 
years.  Six (6) of the eleven (11) incidences involved armed suspects.  The weapons in these 
incidences ranged from handguns to shotguns, and high powered rifles.   

1 



 

 There was also a recent incident, where the Special Response Team was not used, where a 
subject was arrested for Terrorizing, and twenty six (26) firearms were removed from his 
residence. 

 I don’t believe the average citizen understands how prolific the unlawful use/possession of 
firearms is in the Town of Brunswick.  We currently have 108 firearms in our evidence 
inventory.  These firearms range from shotguns of all shapes and sizes to handguns, and 
rifles of various calibers and capacities.  All have been seized for safekeeping and/or from 
various crimes committed in the Town of Brunswick.   

 In October of 2014 the usefulness of a lightly armored vehicle proved itself firsthand in 
Brunswick when patrol officers, followed soon after by Special Response Team members, 
responded to a report of shots being fired on the Mere Point Road.  The suspect in this 
particular case had been firing a shotgun from their residence, towards neighboring houses.  
The suspect initially refused all attempts at contact by our officers, and we were forced to 
contact the Cumberland County Sheriff’s Office and request their assistance.  CCSO’s 
Special Response Team then responded, with their Peacekeeper vehicle.  We were then able 
to put our negotiators safely in front of the residence, where they were able to make contact, 
and negotiate with the suspect from a position of safety.  This simply would not have been 
possible without Cumberland County’s vehicle, and the outcome could have been far more 
devastating to suspect and community as a whole.  (I should note here that an armored 
vehicle from Cumberland County will continue to be an option.  They are currently 
preparing a Mine Resistant Ambush Protected MRAP armored vehicle for their SRT Team.  
The primary issue with counting on CCSO is the response time from the vehicles storage 
facility.)                

 A recent F.B.I. study reports that 34 percent of the active shooter incidents in the United States 
occur at educational institutions or government facilities.  It simply should not be ignored that 
the Town of Brunswick currently hosts three (3) separate Bath Iron Works facilities, Bowdoin 
College, and several public school facilities, the largest of which (Brunswick High School) has 
only one manner of ingress/egress for responding emergency units.      

 

I would be remiss if I did not acknowledge the fact that there has been much publicity in recent 
months over the “militarization” of law enforcement, and I can’t imagine that this would not 
become a topic in any request before the Town for an armored vehicle.  My concern is less about 
political climate however, and more directed towards public safety.  This vehicle would be a piece 
of equipment that would be used for the safety of the Town of Brunswick’s officers and citizens.  It 
would not be deployed to monitor protests, or marches, or parades.  Its’ deployment would mirror 
that of our Special Response Team, which is to augment law enforcement needs that occur above 
and beyond the normal course of duty, such as terrorist activity, barricaded criminals, hostage 
situations, other scenarios with a high risk of violence.       

Thank you for your consideration in this matter.    

 Page 2 
 





 
 

 
ITEM 20 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 February	26,	2015	
	
RE:	 Cook’s	Corner	Road	Project	
	
	
On	November	4,	2013,	the	Town	Council	authorized	the	Town	to	proceed	with	preliminary	
engineering	for	a	road	construction	project	that	would	make	improvements	to	Thomas	Point	Road	
as	well	as	add	two	new	roads;	one	connecting	Gurnet	Road	to	Thomas	Point	Road	and	a	second	
connecting	Thomas	Point	Road	to	Tibbetts	Drive.		The	proposed	project	had	several	goals,	among	
them	to	make	improvements	to	Thomas	Point	Road,	to	allow	a	direct	connection	from	Thomas	
Point	to	Gurnet	Road,	to	make	a	connection	between	the	Cook’s	Corner	Mall	and	Wal‐Mart,	and	to	
provide	access	to	aid	development	in	the	area.			Sitelines	was	chosen	to	prepare	the	preliminary	
engineering	report.	
	
The	road	improvement	project	was	included	in	the	Town’s	capital	improvement	program	(CIP)	
with	the	expectation	that,	if	the	Town	were	to	construct	the	project,	a	majority	of	the	cost	
associated	with	it	would	be	funded	through	tax	increment	financing.		A	small	portion	of	the	project	
would	be	funded	with	Big	Box	fees	that	were	collected	and	dedicated	to	improvements	in	the	Cook’s	
Corner	area.		The	engineering	report	was	delayed	by	the	need	to	secure	commitments	from	
abutting	landowners.		Those	commitments	included	contribution	of	right‐of‐way	and	the	
extinguishment	of	certain	shared	easements.	
	
The	most	recent	estimate	of	the	project	costs,	excluding	the	value	of	contributed	land,	is	
approximately	$2,000,000,	as	follows:	
	

 Section	1	Gurnet	to	Thomas	Point	 	 $740,000	
 Section	2	Thomas	Point	to	Tibbetts	 	 $305,000	
 Section	3	Thomas	Point	Improvements	 $955,000	

	
Since	the	most	recent	estimated	cost	of	the	project	exceeded	the	original	estimated	cost	carried	in	
the	CIP	($1,600,000),	a	number	of	efforts	were	undertaken	to	reduce	the	cost.		Significantly,	one	of	
the	abutting	land	owners	agreed	to	fund	and	construct	the	Thomas	Point	to	Tibbetts	connection.		
This	reduces	the	Town’s	estimated	cost	by	$305,000.	
	
Recently,	the	Town	prepared	a	project	budget	and	tax	increment	financing	model	for	the	project.		
That	model	indicates	that	debt	service	related	to	the	project	could	be	recovered	in	ten	to	fifteen	
years,	should	the	expected	development	occur.		This	is	the	risk	associated	with	the	project;	the	
Town	would	issue	debt	to	fund	road	construction	assuming	that	development	will	occur	to	support	
the	debt	repayment.		The	Town	would	be	responsible	for	the	debt	repayment	regardless	of	whether	
the	development	occurred	at	the	projected	assessments.		
	



A	number	of	ideas	were	explored	to	mitigate	the	risk.		A	credit	enhancement	agreement,	in	which	
the	developer	is	reimbursed	for	development	costs,	would	shift	the	risk	to	the	developer.		In	that	
scenario,	the	developer	would	fund	the	road	construction	and	the	Town	would	be	obligated	to	
reimburse	the	developer	from	the	development	that	actually	occurs.		While	this	would	have	been	
the	Town’s	preferred	approach,	the	lack	of	a	single	developer	complicated	this	approach.		As	an	
alternative,	the	Town	explored	the	potential	of	a	letter	of	credit	(LOC).		A	LOC	would	require	a	
developer	to	have	funds	pledged	to	a	project.		In	the	event	of	a	shortfall	in	funding,	the	Town	could	
draw	on	the	LOC	to	pay	debt	service.		Again,	the	lack	of	a	single	developer	complicated	this	
approach.		As	an	alternative,	the	Town	indicated	that	road	construction	would	not	commence	until	
developers	submitted	sufficient	proof	of	contractual	obligations	for	the	development	of	properties.		
Additionally,	we	have	asked	developers	to	make	an	additional	$200,000	cash	contribution	to	the	
project.			
	
The	Town	has	also	been	exploring	other	opportunities	to	reduce	its	cost.		The	Brunswick	Sewer	
District	has	a	potential	project	for	Thomas	Point	Road.		It	may	be	possible	to	combine	that	project	
with	the	Thomas	Point	Road	improvements,	thereby	sharing	a	small	portion	of	the	costs	associated	
with	the	Thomas	Point	road	improvements.		The	Town	is	also	exploring	modifications	to	the	project	
design	and	the	possibility	of	phasing	the	construction.	
	
I	have	attached	a	number	of	items	related	to	the	project	as	it	is	currently	envisioned.		We	have	
reached	a	point	where	we	need	further	direction	from	the	Town	Council.		Should	the	Town	Council	
wish	to	proceed	along	the	lines	described	in	this	memo,	we	would	need	to	prepare	a	bond	
ordinance	and	a	tax	increment	financing	(TIF)	development	program.		Preparation	and	approval	of	
the	bond	ordinance	and,	more	significantly,	the	TIF	development	program,	are	time‐consuming	
processes.		Both	would	need	to	be	initiated	soon	in	order	to	be	completed	for	the	upcoming	
construction	season.		
	
The	project	has	been	discussed	in	greater	detail	with	the	Finance	Committee.		We	would	be	happy	
to	participate	in	a	workshop	should	that	be	the	Town	Council’s	desire.		The	project,	in	many	
iterations,	has	been	discussed	for	many	years	and	we	believe	we	have	gathered	sufficient	
information	in	order	to	facilitate	a	discussion	about	moving	forward	or	not.	
	
	
Attachments	



C
C

1-
11

 

C
C

2-
2

0
 

C
C

1-
31

 

B
ru

n
sw

ic
k

 
M

ai
ne

 

0 
14

0 
28

0 
56

0 

F
ee

t 

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 w

as
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

 b
y
 th

e 
T

ow
n 

o
f B

ru
n

sw
ic

k'
s 

on
lin

e 
G

IS
. 

T
hi

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

ile
d

 fr
om

 
va

rio
us

 p
u

b
lic

 a
n

d
 p

ri
va

te
 s

ou
rc

es
. 

W
hi

le
 e

ve
ry

 
a

tt
e

m
p

t h
as

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 to
 p

ro
vi

d
e

 a
cc

ur
at

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 

n
e

ith
e

r 
th

e 
m

u
n

ic
ip

a
lit

y 
n

o
r t

h
e

 s
er

vi
ce

 h
o

st
 g

u
a

ra
n

te
e

 
th

e 
a

cc
u

ra
cy

 o
f i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 h
er

ei
n.

 





2/26/2015

Job  Number: 1699.10
Project Location: Cooks Corner Connector Roadway
Comments: Preliminary Estimate of Cost
Date: 2/18/2014 updated 10/10/14
References:
Calculated By: JJM
Checked By: CYN

Notes: 1. Opinion of cost does not include extension of existing water or natural gas mains.

3. Opinion of cost does not include costs associated with wetlands
4. Opinion of cost does not include utility relocations

SECTION 1: From Route 24 to Thomas Point Road,
Construction Costs Summary

536,400                        
26,820                          
53,640                          

Total Estimated Construction Costs: 616,860                        

Engineering Costs Summary
37,012                          
5,000                            

74,023                          
5,000                            

Total Estimate Engineering Costs: 121,035                        

Estimated Section 1 Cost: 737,895                        

SECTION 2: From Thomas Point Road to Tibbets Drive
Construction Costs Summary

216,900                        
10,845                          
21,690                          

Total Estimated Construction Costs: 249,435                        

Engineering Costs Summary
14,966                          
5,000                            

29,932                          
5,000                            

Total Estimate Engineering Costs: 54,898                          

Estimated Section 2 Cost: 304,333                        

SECTION 3: Thomas Point Road Section Upgrade
Construction Costs Summary

693,300                        
34,665                          
69,330                          

Total Estimated Construction Costs: 797,295                        

Engineering Costs Summary
47,838                          
5,000                            

95,675                          
5,000                            

Total Estimate Engineering Costs: 153,513                        

Estimated Section 3 Cost: 950,808                        

737,895                        
304,333                        
950,808                        
20,000                          

2,013,036                    

Final Design (6%):
Permitting:
Construction Management (12%):
Material Testing:

2. Opinion of cost does not include the remediation or removal of any special or 
hazardous materials such as Asbestos, PCB's, etc.

Construction Costs:
Construction Mobilization (5%):
Construction Contigency (10%):

Final Design (6%):
Permitting:
Construction Management (12%):
Material Testing:

Construction Costs:
Construction Mobilization (5%):
Construction Contigency (10%):

Final Design (6%):
Permitting:
Construction Management (12%):
Material Testing:

Construction Costs:
Construction Mobilization (5%):
Construction Contigency (10%):

Preliminary Project Cost - Section 1
Preliminary Project Cost - Section 2
Preliminary Project Cost - Section 3
Legal - Easements/Right-of-Way

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST

T:\Cooks Corner Road Project\Crooker Estimate rev101014.xls Preliminary Costs (2)



Previous Year 1 Total
Source of Funds:

Big Box Fees 45,801$            131,761$          177,562$          
Bond Proceeds -                        1,376,942         1,376,942         
Developer - Cash contribution -                        200,000            200,000            
Developer - Road Construction -                        304,333            304,333            
Developer - Contribution of Land -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        
-                      -                      -                       

45,801$            2,013,036$       2,058,837$       
Project Costs:

Planning 45,801$            -$                      45,801$            
Land acquisition -                        -                        -                        
Road Construction - Gurnet to Thomas Pt 737,895            737,895            
Road Construction - Thomas Pt to Tibbets -                        304,333            304,333            
Thomas Point Road Upgrade -                        950,808            950,808            
Other -                      20,000            20,000             

45,801$           2,013,036$      2,058,837$       

Town of Brunswick
Cooks Corner Road Project Costs



Y
E

A
R

S
L

O
C

A
L

 V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

B
as

e:
20

14
O

ri
gi

na
l:

15
,5

90
,5

00
$ 

   
 

27
.4

St
ar

t:
20

15
G

ro
w

th
 R

at
e:

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

C
om

po
ne

nt
 I

C
om

po
ne

nt
 II

C
om

po
ne

nt
 II

I
T

ot
al

T
IF

A
dd

iti
on

al
D

is
tr

ic
t 

In
cr

em
en

ta
l

T
ax

T
ax

 
D

eb
t

C
oo

ks
 C

or
ne

r
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
Pr

og
ra

m
Y

ea
r

G
ro

w
th

V
al

ue
V

al
ue

R
at

e
In

cr
em

en
t

Se
rv

ic
e

M
as

te
r 

Pl
an

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

C
os

ts
B

as
e

20
14

‐
20

15
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,5
90

,5
00

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

27
.4

0
$ 

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1
20

15
-

20
16

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
,5

90
,5

00
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
27

.4
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2

20
16

-
20

17
2 

A
cr

e 
Lo

t
2,

41
1,

50
0

   
   

   
  

18
,0

02
,0

00
   

   
 

2,
41

1,
50

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

66
,0

75
   

   
   

   
 

45
,5

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

45
,5

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
3

20
17

-
20

18
Lo

t 1
61

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

18
,6

18
,0

00
   

   
 

3,
02

7,
50

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

82
,9

54
   

   
   

   
 

45
,5

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

45
,5

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
4

20
18

-
20

19
Lo

t 2
98

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

19
,5

98
,0

00
   

   
 

4,
00

7,
50

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

10
9,

80
6

   
   

   
  

12
0,

50
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
0,

50
0

   
   

   
   

  
5

20
19

-
20

20
Lo

t 3
98

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

20
,5

78
,0

00
   

   
 

4,
98

7,
50

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

13
6,

65
8

   
   

   
  

11
8,

06
3

   
   

   
   

25
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

15
3,

06
3

   
   

   
   

  
6

20
20

-
20

21
K

el
le

y 
de

ve
l.

4,
37

9,
60

0
   

   
   

  
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
11

5,
62

5
   

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
22

5,
62

5
   

   
   

   
  

7
20

21
-

20
22

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

13
8,

18
8

   
   

   
   

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

24
8,

18
8

   
   

   
   

  
8

20
22

-
20

23
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
13

4,
93

8
   

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
24

4,
93

8
   

   
   

   
  

9
20

23
-

20
24

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

15
6,

68
8

   
   

   
   

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

26
6,

68
8

   
   

   
   

  
10

20
24

-
20

25
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
15

2,
62

5
   

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
26

2,
62

5
   

   
   

   
  

11
20

25
-

20
26

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

14
8,

56
3

   
   

   
   

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
8,

56
3

   
   

   
   

  
12

20
26

-
20

27
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
16

9,
50

0
   

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
27

9,
50

0
   

   
   

   
  

13
20

27
-

20
28

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

16
4,

62
5

   
   

   
   

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

27
4,

62
5

   
   

   
   

  
14

20
28

-
20

29
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
15

9,
75

0
   

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
26

9,
75

0
   

   
   

   
  

15
20

29
-

20
30

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

15
4,

87
5

   
   

   
   

10
2,

14
2

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

26
7,

01
7

   
   

   
   

  
16

20
30

20
31

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
  

17
20

31
20

32
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  
18

20
32

20
33

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
  

19
20

33
20

34
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  
20

20
34

20
35

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
  

21
20

35
20

36
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  
22

20
36

20
37

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
  

23
20

37
20

38
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  
24

20
38

20
39

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
  

25
20

39
20

40
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  
26

20
40

20
41

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
  

27
20

41
20

42
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  
28

20
42

20
43

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
  

29
20

39
20

40
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  
30

20
40

-
20

41
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  

T
ot

al
s

9,
36

7,
10

0.
00

   
   

6,
81

1,
96

8.
00

 
1,

82
4,

93
7.

50
  

4,
72

7,
02

7.
00

  
26

0,
00

0.
00

   
  

6,
81

1,
96

7.
00

   
  

C
oo

ks
 C

or
ne

r 
T

IF
 D

is
tr

ic
t

Fi
sc

al
Y

ea
r

C
ap

tu
re

d 
V

al
ue

s, 
T

ax
es

, a
nd

 N
et

 P
ro

gr
am

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts

T
IF

 R
ev

en
ue

s U
se

d
T

IF
 R

ev
en

ue
s C

ap
tu

re
d



C
C

1-
11

 

C
C

2-
2

0
 

C
C

1-
31

 

B
ru

n
sw

ic
k

 
M

ai
ne

 

0 
14

0 
28

0 
56

0 

F
ee

t 

T
hi

s 
m

ap
 w

as
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

 b
y
 th

e 
T

ow
n 

o
f B

ru
n

sw
ic

k'
s 

on
lin

e 
G

IS
. 

T
hi

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

m
p

ile
d

 fr
om

 
va

rio
us

 p
u

b
lic

 a
n

d
 p

ri
va

te
 s

ou
rc

es
. 

W
hi

le
 e

ve
ry

 
a

tt
e

m
p

t h
as

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 to
 p

ro
vi

d
e

 a
cc

ur
at

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 

n
e

ith
e

r 
th

e 
m

u
n

ic
ip

a
lit

y 
n

o
r t

h
e

 s
er

vi
ce

 h
o

st
 g

u
a

ra
n

te
e

 
th

e 
a

cc
u

ra
cy

 o
f i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 h
er

ei
n.

 





2/26/2015

Job  Number: 1699.10
Project Location: Cooks Corner Connector Roadway
Comments: Preliminary Estimate of Cost
Date: 2/18/2014 updated 10/10/14
References:
Calculated By: JJM
Checked By: CYN

Notes: 1. Opinion of cost does not include extension of existing water or natural gas mains.

3. Opinion of cost does not include costs associated with wetlands
4. Opinion of cost does not include utility relocations

SECTION 1: From Route 24 to Thomas Point Road,
Construction Costs Summary

536,400                        
26,820                          
53,640                          

Total Estimated Construction Costs: 616,860                        

Engineering Costs Summary
37,012                          
5,000                            

74,023                          
5,000                            

Total Estimate Engineering Costs: 121,035                        

Estimated Section 1 Cost: 737,895                        

SECTION 2: From Thomas Point Road to Tibbets Drive
Construction Costs Summary

216,900                        
10,845                          
21,690                          

Total Estimated Construction Costs: 249,435                        

Engineering Costs Summary
14,966                          
5,000                            

29,932                          
5,000                            

Total Estimate Engineering Costs: 54,898                          

Estimated Section 2 Cost: 304,333                        

SECTION 3: Thomas Point Road Section Upgrade
Construction Costs Summary

693,300                        
34,665                          
69,330                          

Total Estimated Construction Costs: 797,295                        

Engineering Costs Summary
47,838                          
5,000                            

95,675                          
5,000                            

Total Estimate Engineering Costs: 153,513                        

Estimated Section 3 Cost: 950,808                        

737,895                        
304,333                        
950,808                        
20,000                          

2,013,036                    

Final Design (6%):
Permitting:
Construction Management (12%):
Material Testing:

2. Opinion of cost does not include the remediation or removal of any special or 
hazardous materials such as Asbestos, PCB's, etc.

Construction Costs:
Construction Mobilization (5%):
Construction Contigency (10%):

Final Design (6%):
Permitting:
Construction Management (12%):
Material Testing:

Construction Costs:
Construction Mobilization (5%):
Construction Contigency (10%):

Final Design (6%):
Permitting:
Construction Management (12%):
Material Testing:

Construction Costs:
Construction Mobilization (5%):
Construction Contigency (10%):

Preliminary Project Cost - Section 1
Preliminary Project Cost - Section 2
Preliminary Project Cost - Section 3
Legal - Easements/Right-of-Way

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST

T:\Cooks Corner Road Project\Crooker Estimate rev101014.xls Preliminary Costs (2)



Previous Year 1 Total
Source of Funds:

Big Box Fees 45,801$            131,761$          177,562$          
Bond Proceeds -                        1,376,942         1,376,942         
Developer - Cash contribution -                        200,000            200,000            
Developer - Road Construction -                        304,333            304,333            
Developer - Contribution of Land -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        
-                        -                        -                        
-                      -                      -                       

45,801$            2,013,036$       2,058,837$       
Project Costs:

Planning 45,801$            -$                      45,801$            
Land acquisition -                        -                        -                        
Road Construction - Gurnet to Thomas Pt 737,895            737,895            
Road Construction - Thomas Pt to Tibbets -                        304,333            304,333            
Thomas Point Road Upgrade -                        950,808            950,808            
Other -                      20,000            20,000             

45,801$           2,013,036$      2,058,837$       

Town of Brunswick
Cooks Corner Road Project Costs



Y
E

A
R

S
L

O
C

A
L

 V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

B
as

e:
20

14
O

ri
gi

na
l:

15
,5

90
,5

00
$ 

   
 

27
.4

St
ar

t:
20

15
G

ro
w

th
 R

at
e:

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

C
om

po
ne

nt
 I

C
om

po
ne

nt
 II

C
om

po
ne

nt
 II

I
T

ot
al

T
IF

A
dd

iti
on

al
D

is
tr

ic
t 

In
cr

em
en

ta
l

T
ax

T
ax

 
D

eb
t

C
oo

ks
 C

or
ne

r
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
Pr

og
ra

m
Y

ea
r

G
ro

w
th

V
al

ue
V

al
ue

R
at

e
In

cr
em

en
t

Se
rv

ic
e

M
as

te
r 

Pl
an

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

C
os

ts
B

as
e

20
14

‐
20

15
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,5
90

,5
00

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

27
.4

0
$ 

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1
20

15
-

20
16

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
,5

90
,5

00
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
27

.4
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
2

20
16

-
20

17
2 

A
cr

e 
Lo

t
2,

41
1,

50
0

   
   

   
  

18
,0

02
,0

00
   

   
 

2,
41

1,
50

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

66
,0

75
   

   
   

   
 

45
,5

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

45
,5

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
3

20
17

-
20

18
Lo

t 1
61

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

18
,6

18
,0

00
   

   
 

3,
02

7,
50

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

82
,9

54
   

   
   

   
 

45
,5

00
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

45
,5

00
   

   
   

   
   

 
4

20
18

-
20

19
Lo

t 2
98

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

19
,5

98
,0

00
   

   
 

4,
00

7,
50

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

10
9,

80
6

   
   

   
  

12
0,

50
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
0,

50
0

   
   

   
   

  
5

20
19

-
20

20
Lo

t 3
98

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

20
,5

78
,0

00
   

   
 

4,
98

7,
50

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

13
6,

65
8

   
   

   
  

11
8,

06
3

   
   

   
   

25
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

15
3,

06
3

   
   

   
   

  
6

20
20

-
20

21
K

el
le

y 
de

ve
l.

4,
37

9,
60

0
   

   
   

  
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
11

5,
62

5
   

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
22

5,
62

5
   

   
   

   
  

7
20

21
-

20
22

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

13
8,

18
8

   
   

   
   

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

24
8,

18
8

   
   

   
   

  
8

20
22

-
20

23
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
13

4,
93

8
   

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
24

4,
93

8
   

   
   

   
  

9
20

23
-

20
24

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

15
6,

68
8

   
   

   
   

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

26
6,

68
8

   
   

   
   

  
10

20
24

-
20

25
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
15

2,
62

5
   

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
26

2,
62

5
   

   
   

   
  

11
20

25
-

20
26

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

14
8,

56
3

   
   

   
   

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
8,

56
3

   
   

   
   

  
12

20
26

-
20

27
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
16

9,
50

0
   

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
27

9,
50

0
   

   
   

   
  

13
20

27
-

20
28

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

16
4,

62
5

   
   

   
   

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

27
4,

62
5

   
   

   
   

  
14

20
28

-
20

29
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
15

9,
75

0
   

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
26

9,
75

0
   

   
   

   
  

15
20

29
-

20
30

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

15
4,

87
5

   
   

   
   

10
2,

14
2

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

26
7,

01
7

   
   

   
   

  
16

20
30

20
31

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
  

17
20

31
20

32
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  
18

20
32

20
33

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
  

19
20

33
20

34
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  
20

20
34

20
35

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
  

21
20

35
20

36
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  
22

20
36

20
37

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
  

23
20

37
20

38
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  
24

20
38

20
39

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
  

25
20

39
20

40
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  
26

20
40

20
41

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
  

27
20

41
20

42
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  
28

20
42

20
43

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,9

57
,6

00
   

   
 

9,
36

7,
10

0
   

   
   

27
.4

0
   

   
 

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

   
  

29
20

39
20

40
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  
30

20
40

-
20

41
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
24

,9
57

,6
00

   
   

 
9,

36
7,

10
0

   
   

   
27

.4
0

   
   

 
25

6,
65

9
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

65
9

   
   

   
   

  

T
ot

al
s

9,
36

7,
10

0.
00

   
   

6,
81

1,
96

8.
00

 
1,

82
4,

93
7.

50
  

4,
72

7,
02

7.
00

  
26

0,
00

0.
00

   
  

6,
81

1,
96

7.
00

   
  

C
oo

ks
 C

or
ne

r 
T

IF
 D

is
tr

ic
t

Fi
sc

al
Y

ea
r

C
ap

tu
re

d 
V

al
ue

s, 
T

ax
es

, a
nd

 N
et

 P
ro

gr
am

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts

T
IF

 R
ev

en
ue

s U
se

d
T

IF
 R

ev
en

ue
s C

ap
tu

re
d



 
 

 
ITEM 21 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



























 
 

 
ITEM 22 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 









































 
 

 
ITEM 23 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



O:\Word\Boards-fran\board summaries\Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee revised 09.doc 
 

Brunswick Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 
Committee’s Charge 

Approved by Council on April 20, 1999 
Amended by Council on August 3, 2009 

Draft change – 2-24-15 
 
Mission: To advocate and work towards improving the bicycle and pedestrian network in 
Brunswick. 
 

1. Using the “Brunswick Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements Plan” as a tool work 
with the Town Manager, the Department of Planning and Development, the 
Department of Public Works, and the Department of Parks and Recreation to prepare 
an annual schedule of improvements to be included in the Capital Improvement Plan 
(CIP). 

 
2. Seek alternative (to Town) funding sources. 
 
3. Act as an information source for Town officials and the community; keep in touch 

with what is going on regionally and nationally; share information as needed with 
other communities. 

 
4. Make recommendations as warranted on proposed project requiring development 

review by the Planning Board. 
 
Procedure: 
 

1. Present recommendations for annual bicycle/pedestrian CIP to the Town Council for 
approval. 

 
2. Present to the Town Council an annual report on Committee activities and 

accomplishments. 
 
3. Continue to have monthly meeting at Town Offices. 
 
4. Seek Councilor input when his/her district contains a proposed or active project. 
 
5. Continue to coordinate with Town committees by having BBPAC members serve on, 

for example, the Open Space Task Force and Recreation Commission. 
 
Membership: 
 

1. Town Council to appoint seven (7) members.  One of those members will be a Town 
Councilor Representative, who will be appointed annually by the Council Chair in 
January. 
(Amended from nine to seven August 3, 2009) 

 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 24 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Memorandum 
 
TO:  Town Council 
FROM: Jane Millet, Chair of Appointment’s Committee 
DATE:  February 19, 2015 
RE:  Appointments Committee Recommendation for Appointment 
 
 
The Appointments Committee met on Wednesday, February 18th and interview several applicants for 
vacant positions and upcoming vacancies.  The following are our recommendations for the Council 
consideration to fill spots on Town boards and committees: 
 
MPIC 
Crystal Card - a creative economy member with a term to expire on 12/01/2017 
 
Planning Board 
Charles Frizzle – reappointment with a term to expire on 02/23/2018 
Jeremy Evans – appointment with a term to expire on 02/23/2018 
 
Board of Assessment Review 
Stephen Holt –reappointment with a term to expire on 01/12/2018 
Dorothy Ollier - reappointment with a term to expire on 01/12/2018 
 
Conservation Commission 
Thomas Rumpf - reappointment with a term to expire on 05/1/2017 
 
Bicycle and Pedestrian Committee 
William (Ben) Walsh – appointment with no set term 
 
Recycling and Sustainability Committee 
William (Ben) Walsh – appointment with a term to expire on 01/01/2017 
 












































	BrunswickConnectorRdTIS.pdf
	2014 Existing Peak Hour Levels of Service
	As seen above, the signalized intersection of Gurnet Road, Cook’s Corner Plaza and the Regal Cinemas operates at a high level of service “B” with no existing capacity concerns during the PM peak hour period.  During the Saturday peak hour, the inters...
	Route 24 Location Description # of Acc. CRF
	Between Perryman Drive and Regal Cinemas  1 0.18
	Bath Road Location Description # of Acc. CRF
	Between Old Bath Road and Tibbetts Drive  2 0.21
	Bath Road Location Description # of Acc. CRF
	Thomas Point Road Location Description # of Acc. CRF
	Between Regal Cinemas and Bath Road 2 0.72
	Given that the westbound Bath Road lane movements at the intersection of Tibbetts Road are a left-through and a through (as opposed to a dedicated left and a through), build operations were also assessed with a change in lane use. The overall level o...
	2024 Projected Peak Hour Levels of Service
	As seen in the preceding table, the signalized intersection of Gurnet Road, Cook’s Corner Plaza and the Regal Cinemas is expected to operate at a level of service “B” overall during the PM peak hour under both 2024 no-build and build volumes.  The in...
	As noted under the existing conditions analysis, given the lack of overhead lane use signage and pavement markings, and the heavy left turn exiting the Plaza, eastbound and westbound traffic is sometimes confused over right-of-way.  At least one acci...

	BrunswickConnectorRdCov.pdf
	TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY
	PROPOSED CONNECTOR ROAD, BRUNSWICK, MAINE
	March 3, 2014
	Sitelines, P.A.


	Part 1.pdf
	ca a yes
	ca a Febuary 23, 2015 min
	mr a no
	mr b yes
	MR B NoticeofPublicHearing_rhd
	18 yes
	18 Gelato Fiasco CDBG Memo to Town Council (2-25-2015)
	18 Gelato Fiasco EDP LOI (2-25-2015)
	19 yes
	19 Armored Vehicle Memo to TM-2
	19 Armored vehicle request

	Part 3.pdf
	21 yes
	21 Public Ways Mall
	22 yes
	22 Public Ways sidewalk
	23 yes
	23 Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee DRAFT 2015
	24 yes
	24 App File for March 2nd TC meeting
	2014 for 2015 Card C Downtown M P_20141205120215
	2015 Evans J Planning_20150109125845
	2015 Holt S Assmt Rev_20150202111639
	2015 Ollier bd of assessment
	2014 for 2015 Rumpf T Consv_20141205131723
	2015 Walsh WB BP ETC_20150126161214


	20 Memo Cook's Corner Project 022615 ver3.pdf
	Memo Cook's Corner Project 022615.pdf
	BrunswickConnectorRdTIS.pdf
	2014 Existing Peak Hour Levels of Service
	As seen above, the signalized intersection of Gurnet Road, Cook’s Corner Plaza and the Regal Cinemas operates at a high level of service “B” with no existing capacity concerns during the PM peak hour period.  During the Saturday peak hour, the inters...
	Route 24 Location Description # of Acc. CRF
	Between Perryman Drive and Regal Cinemas  1 0.18
	Bath Road Location Description # of Acc. CRF
	Between Old Bath Road and Tibbetts Drive  2 0.21
	Bath Road Location Description # of Acc. CRF
	Thomas Point Road Location Description # of Acc. CRF
	Between Regal Cinemas and Bath Road 2 0.72
	Given that the westbound Bath Road lane movements at the intersection of Tibbetts Road are a left-through and a through (as opposed to a dedicated left and a through), build operations were also assessed with a change in lane use. The overall level o...
	2024 Projected Peak Hour Levels of Service
	As seen in the preceding table, the signalized intersection of Gurnet Road, Cook’s Corner Plaza and the Regal Cinemas is expected to operate at a level of service “B” overall during the PM peak hour under both 2024 no-build and build volumes.  The in...
	As noted under the existing conditions analysis, given the lack of overhead lane use signage and pavement markings, and the heavy left turn exiting the Plaza, eastbound and westbound traffic is sometimes confused over right-of-way.  At least one acci...

	BrunswickConnectorRdCov.pdf
	TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY
	PROPOSED CONNECTOR ROAD, BRUNSWICK, MAINE
	March 3, 2014
	Sitelines, P.A.





